Early Vancouver
Volume One
By: Major J.S. Matthews, V.D.
2011 Edition (Originally Published 1932)
Narrative of Pioneers of Vancouver, BC Collected During 1931-1932.

A Collection of Historical Data, Maps, and Plans Made with the Assistance of
Pioneers of Vancouver Between March and December 1931.

About the 2011 Edition

The 2011 edition is a transcription of the original work collected and published by Major Matthews. Handwritten marginalia
and corrections Matthews made to his text over the years have been incorporated and some typographical errors have
been corrected, but no other editorial work has been undertaken. The edition and its online presentation was produced by
the City of Vancouver Archives to celebrate the 125" anniversary of the City's founding. The project was made possible
by funding from the Vancouver Historical Society.
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Reproductions
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30 JUNE 1931 - MOUNT PLEASANT. RIFLES AND RIFLE SHOOTING. 13TH AVENUE
WEST.

| joined the old Sixth Regiment, the Duke of Connaught’s Own Rifles, as a private, on 17 March
1903, being the first man sworn in to G Company, when the regiment was enlarged by two new
companies. It was the only militia unit in Vancouver at the time.

At that time, Mr. C.M. Rolston, then bookkeeper and salesman of the Imperial Oil Company
Limited, afterwards Imperial Oil Limited, of which he was for a quarter of a century or more
manager, lived at the corner of Ontario Street and 13" Avenue.

In due course, | was issued a rifle, a .303 Lee-Enfield, and one evening in the summer of 1903, |
turned up at his home. We went down 13" Avenue to the west a few yards, set up a canvas
target about four feet square, and used 13" Avenue, firing west, as our rifle range. The rifle was
capable of throwing its projectile 2,700 yards, a muzzle velocity of, say, 2,200 feet per second.

At that time, all west of Ontario Street was second growth woods; 13™ Avenue, to the west, was a
narrow trail for some 200 or 300 yards, and then melted into a path, finally to disappear
altogether.

J.S. Matthews

THE FIRST DRILL HALL. THE IMPERIAL OPERA HOUSE.

(Photograph in J.C. Cornish album in Archives.)

The old Drill Shed on Pender Street was, at first, the Imperial Opera House, built in 1889, and it is
to perpetuate the site, now occupied by the Shelly Building, formerly the Duncan Building, that the

regiments of Vancouver subscribed together for a memorial tablet, not yet unveiled, in 1931. The
tablet reads:
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